Auckland ,gyé.
Council|_T_

Heritage Evaluation

W H Murray Shoe Factory (former)
28 Crummer Road, Grey Lynn

Prepared by Auckland Council Heritage Unit

February 2017



Heritage Assessment

W H Murray Shoe Company (former), 28 Crummer Road, Grey Lynn

Prepared by Auckland Council Heritage Unit

February 2017
Cover image: Corner photograph of the former Murray Shoe Factory (Auckland

Council, February 2016)



1.0 Purpose

The purpose of this document is to evaluate the building located at 28 Crummer Road,
Grey Lynn against the criteria for evaluation of historic heritage in the Auckland Council
Unitary Plan Operative in Part.

The document has been prepared by Megan Walker (Historic Heritage Specialist) of
the Heritage Unit, Auckland Council.

2.0 Identification

28 Crummer Road, Grey Lynn
Site address

LOT 18 SEC 4 DP 242

Legal description CT: 138/267

NZTM reference NZTM:- Easting: 1755853.47 / Northing:
591917930:- Longitude: 174748368 / Latitude: -
36860479

Ownership CFKHoandJ T Ho

c/- Barfoot and Thompson
Glendene Branch

P O Box 69009

Glendene

Auckland

New Zealand

Unitary Plan zoning Zone: Light Industry

Existing scheduled None
item(s)
Heritage New N/A
Zealand registration

Pre-1900 site By definition of these sections of the Act, the
(HPA Section 2a(i) building is unlikely to be considered an
and 2b) archaeological site due to its association with human

occupation after 1900.

CHI reference Not recorded in the Cultural Heritage Inventory.
NZAA site record N/A
number

3.0 Constraints

° This evaluation is based on the information available at the time of assessment.
Due to the timeframe presented, research for the evaluation was undertaken to
an extent that enables the site to be evaluated against the criteria, but is not
exhaustive.



o This evaluation does not include an assessment of archaeological values or an
assessment of the importance of the place to mana whenua.

o The interior of the building has not been inspected and is not part of this
evaluation.
o This evaluation does not include a structural evaluation or condition report; any

comments on the structural integrity or the condition of the building are based
on visual inspection only. The condition is not a heritage value and therefore
does not form part of the considerations in section 7 of this report.

4.0 Historical summary
4.1 The Site

The site, now known as 28 Crummer Road Grey Lynn, was part of the Surrey Hills
Estate, which was subdivided in the 1880s. Consisting of approximately 400 acres, the
estate was developed following the purchase of farmland belonging to James
Williamson.

~/.  SURREY HILLS ESTATE \_

Figure 1: The Surrey Hills Estate Plan showing allotments for sale. (Sir George Grey Special Collections,
Auckland Libraries, NZ Map 4553).

An advertisement in the Auckland Star advises the first sections of the estate, were to
be auctioned on 3 October 1883 by B. Tonks and Co." There was a great deal of
public opposition to the layout of the new subdivision as the sections offered for sale
were very small and there were few open spaces allocated for recreation. The
proposed development consisted of right of ways leading to the rear of the street facing
property, and consequently, providing a very dense settlement. Interpreted by the
public as trying to fit too much into a small space for maximum monetary gain, resulted
the postponement of the auction while the layout was reconsidered.” A new proposal
created larger sections and removed the right of ways.® The first sections of the
subdivision, which included parts of Mackelvie Street, went up for auction on 24

L Auckland Star, 24 September 1883, p4
% Auckland Star, 6 October 1883, p6
% New Zealand Herald, 17 October 1883, p5



October 1883.

An early Certificate of Title for the Surrey Estate Allotments, dated 5 January 1897,
shows the site in question for sale as Section 4 Lot 18. Christina Taylor Kennerley, the
wife of William Henry Kennerley, purchased the property on 10 January 1907.*

In 1929, the property was transferred to Thomas Joseph Nevin,> who was a company
director of the Murray Shoe Company, and who intended to build a new shoe factory
and offices.

4.2 The W H Murray Shoe Company

Walter Henry Murray founded a bootmaking company in the late 19" century, known as
W H Murray and Co.° By the turn of the century, he was in partnership with W G
Ledingham and F H McGinley. An Auckland Star article dated 14 May 1901 reports the
dissolution of a partnership in the company W.H Murray and Co, due to the retirement
of Frances Henry McGinley.” Originally working from a factory in Albert Street, the
company moved into new purpose built premises in Cook Street in 1906.% An article in
the Auckland Star reports on the new factory noting that “air, space and light have
received the close attention of the architect” and that the “comfort of the workmen has
been well considered”.’

Figure 2: Cook Street in 1906 with the new W.H. Murray & Co building shown to the lower right hand
corner. (Sir George Grey Special Collections, Auckland Libraries, 1-W154).

* CT NA82-214, CT NA138-267

® Ibid

® The date Murray’s bootmaking company began has not been confirmed, but newspaper advertisements
indicate it was up and running in the 1890s. Refer Auckland Star, 14 October, 1898, p8

" Auckland Star , 14 May 1901, p8

8 Auckland Star, 5 May 1906, p6

° Ibid



It is uncertain when Walter Murray resigned as managing director of the Murray Shoe
Company. He was still in charge of the company in 1918 as indicated in a New
Zealand Herald report on a factory dispute.'’® Newspaper reports indicate that he was
an active member of the Boot Manufacturer's Association around this time.* In 1904,
Walter Murray was elected secretary of the association’? and in later years, was
president of the Auckland Branch.*®

By 1929, newspaper advertisements reveal T J Nevin as the Proprietor of the Murray
Shoe Manufacturing Company.*

The “Murray Shoe” was a popular brand. The company adopted the slogan “Makes
life’s walk easy”. An article in the New Zealand Herald talks about the quality and
comfort of the shoes made by the company.® By the 1920s, they were making not
only workers boots, but also fashionable shoes for both men and women. The New
Zealand Herald reported the following details on the production of shoes.

As the sample rooms of the Murray Shoe Company, in Cook Street, may be seen
the latest and smartest of footwear in suede, patent and fancy wear. The sandal
effect is proving extremely popular, while equally high in favour are the shoes of
fancy design in patent leather with straps. The present vogue is all for strap
shoes, and these are showing in wide variety.'®

The company remained in Cook Street until 1930. The location on the corner of
Crummer Road and Mackelvie Street became the site of the new factory and offices.
The new factory opened during the depression and survived the downturn in the
economy. There were reports of incidents in the early 1930s of the new factory being
broken into and footwear being stolen.*’

Designed by Tole and Murray Architects, the original drawings of the new factory show
the elevations and plans indicating the exterior of the building has not changed much
since it was first constructed.'®

Prior to later development which took place in the 1980s, the south western side of the
building was exposed to the street displaying three levels of the building, including the
basement level. The original drawings show details on the fagade which include what
looks like a crest at the top and fluted pillars along with the words “The Murray Shoe
Company” extending across the top of both street facades. The main entrance is
shown to be at the faceted corner of the building where Mackelvie Street meets
Crummer Road.

The original floor plan was simple, with an open plan of factory space on the ground
and first floor. Some partitioning on the ground floor allowed for a small amount of
office space facing Crummer Road.

During WWII, the shoe factory was listed as one of the essential industries under the
National Service Emergency Regulations required within Auckland, to produce boots
for soldiers.’® Men working in essential industries could apply for exemption from

9 New Zealand Herald, 17 May 1918, p6

" New Zealand Herald, 25 January 1918, p6

2 New Zealand Herald, 9 November 1904, p4

13 Auckland Star, 5 December 1912, p6

1 Auckland Star, 21 September 1929, p4

iz New Zealand Herald, 18 December, 1924, p15
Ibid

" New Zealand Herald, 19 May 1933, p10

'8 Auckland Council Property Files, Drawings for The Murray Shoe Company Ltd dated September, 1929.

These drawings are shown in Appendix 2.

9 Auckland Star, 26 January 1942, p3



military service. As one of the essential industries, the company lodged appeals to the
No.1 Armed Forces Appeal Board for exemption of its workers.?

4.3 Changes to the Building

Over time, a number of interior changes were made to the Crummer Road building.
Plans drawn up in 1944, show the introduction of a mezzanine floor. Plans for major
internal alterations were drawn up in 1950. The architect for either of these alterations
is unknown. However the building application form is signed by someone working for
the McLeod Construction Company,” on behalf of the Murray Shoe Company. The
1950 floor plans?® indicate offices were created in the basement. The remainder of the
basement was designated as storeroom space. The existing offices on the ground
floor were converted to one space for dispatch. The remainder of the ground floor is
labelled “Making and Finishing”. A lift appears for the first time in the 1950 drawings
from the basement to the ground floor, on the south western side of the building. A fire
escape is introduced in the 1950 alterations on the Mackelvie Street side of the
building. On the first floor in the 1950 floor plan, a large machine room, a skiving room,
a clicking room and separate lunch rooms for men and women, next to a kitchen, are
detailed. Overall the floor space appears to be more defined than the 1929
construction drawings.

Drawings undertaken by George Tole in June 1961% indicate minor changes to the
building, allowing for an exit and external staircase on the south western side. Further
drawings completed in 1965,%* possibly by George Tole,” show the enclosure of an
existing verandah to convert into an office. It is uncertain if this was ever built. The
drawings indicate the shoe factory still occupied the building at this time.

It appears the shoe factory had moved premises by the 1970s. It is uncertain when
and where they moved to but a later address for Murray shoes at the time of the
company’s dissolution in 1984 was 24-26 Crummer Road which is on the north eastern
side of Mackelvie Street.”® It is unclear why the Murray Shoe Company closed as it
appears to have downsized and shut its doors prior to import restrictions on footwear
being removed in the late 1980s. The lowering of tarriffs for imported footwear
eventually became a death sentence for all but a handful of shoe manufacturers in New
Zealand.

4.4 The Building following the Murray Shoe Company Residency

In September 1973, the property was purchased by David Raymond Denning,”’ a
Company Director for Dennings Glasshouses Ltd. In December 1975 a caveat was
raised on the property by Brian Leonard Deuchar and Lloyd Services Ltd. Alterations
to the interior of the building were undertaken for Lloyd Services in 1973 with a
completely new layout of offices and the introduction of stairs to the north eastern
corner.?® The floor plans for these changes are described as “Proposed Partitioning for
Lloyd Services Ltd at 28 Crummer Road.” The name Deuchar & Denning
Developments appears on the drawings, suggesting that David Denning had gone into
business with Brian Deuchar to develop the property, leasing it to Lloyd Services. It is
more than likely at this time, that the name Lloyd House as it is known today was given
to the building.

Auckland Star, 11 November 1942, p4
Auckland Council Property Files, Building Application Form dated December 1950
Auckland Council Property Files, 1950 drawings for alterations
Auckland Council Property File, Alterations drawn by George Tole dated June 1961.
Auckland Council Property File, Alterations dated February 1965.
% There is no name on the drawings but they are in the same style as the earlier Tole drawings.
% https://opencorporates.com/companies/nz/44843 accessed 19 February 2016
2 - Certificate of Title NA 138/267
8 Auckland Council Property File, Alterations dated August 1973
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The 1973 drawings also show a garage on the ground floor, at the rear of the building
with a petrol pump in the car park. A 1000 gallon underground tank was also approved
by council as part of the alterations.?

In May 1978 the building was purchased by Dr Thomas Ho and his wife, Joyce, who
have continued to own the building since that time.** A caveat registered by Lloyd
Services in June 1978, suggests they remained in the building under the new
ownership.

Figure 3: An aerial taken in the 1970s prior to the Marler factory being built. The arrow is pointing to the
site of the shoe factory. (Sir George Grey Special Collections, Auckland Libraries, NZ Map 5977d).

Roller doors were added to two bays at the rear of the building in 1984.%

In the mid-1980s the Marler shoe factory was built on the south western side of the
former Murray shoe factory. In January 1985, Crothall Property Services raised a
caveat on the building at 28 Crummer Road, which remained in place until 2006.

In the 1990s a panel beaters business, CJD Panels, was operating out of the premises
managed by Christopher Delich. Mr Delich also lived on the premises with his family,
converting first floor office space into an apartment.®® The building is listed as
workshop/residential in the 1996 building warrant of fitness.** Companies Office
records indicate Delich’s business started using the building in 1992 and left the
premises in 1999.%

> |bid

%0 Certificate of Title, NA 138/267

%1 Auckland Council Property Files, Alterations dated May 1984.

%2 Auckland Council Property Files, Auckland Council letter dated April 1997

33 Auckland Council Property Files, Building Warrant of Fitness, December 1996

34 Companies Office records accessed 13 April 2016
http://www.coys.co.nz/company/?no=811122GREY+LYNN+PANEL+%26+PAINT+LIMITED
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It is uncertain who occupied the building from this time, but it may have been City Bike
Dismantlers who are recorded in the Auckland City Council Warrant of Fitness as being
occupants from at least 2005 until 2007.%°

The current occupiers of the building, Espresso Engineers, have been in the building
since 2007, as is indicated by the Companies Office Records.*

4.5 Walter Henry Murray

Walter Murray was the original managing director of the
Murray Shoe Company. Appointed secretary of the
Boot Manufacturers Association in November 1904,%
Murray was president of the Auckland branch of the
association for many years. He was also a councillor
with the Grey Lynn Borough Council in the early 1900s
and served as Mayor of the Grey Lynn Borough Council
between 1911-1912 prior to its amalgamation with
Auckland City. He later became a councillor of the
Auckland City Council and stood for Mayor in the 1929
elections. A keen bowler, Murray was for many years
the president of the Grey Lynn Bowling Club. In 1914,
he stood as a candidate for Grey Lynn in the central
Government elections® but later withdrew from this
contest.®* He also served a term on the Auckland
we. w. m wuemay, oevostriox | Harbour Board in 1926.%°

CANDIDATE FOR GREY LYNN

Figure 4: Walter Murray in a photograph taken for the Auckland Weekly News, on the 19 October 1911 as
a candidate for Grey Lynn in the upcoming general elections. (Sir George Grey Special Collections,
Auckland Libraries, AWNS 19111019-15-4).

4.6 The Architects
Tole and Massey

George Edmund Tole (1897 -1972) was born in Auckland and was the son of Joseph A
Tole, a Member of Parliament. Educated at Sacred Heart College, Kings College and
Auckland University, he trained with the Architects, Arnold and Abbott. In June 1928,
he formed a partnership with Horace Massey. They continued in partnership until
1932. Tole became the architect for the Auckland Diocese, designing many churches,
schools and convents.

He was the designer of St Dominic’s Convent (1939) in Northcote, St Frances’ Friary
(1939) in Hillsborough, St Mary’s Convent (Main Block—1929) in Ponsonby and the
Baradene College new library wing (1937) and Jubilee Wing (1960). He was also the
architect of the Trevor Davis Memorial Fountain (1950) in Mission Bay.

Tole was a leading authority on Georgian architecture, which is acknowledged in a
number of his buildings. He was also a keen conservationist founding the New
Zealand Conservation Society and was president of the Tree Society. As a sporting
enthusiast he was a member of the Auckland Racing Club, the Auckland Trotting Club,

% Auckland Council Property Files, Building Warrants of Fitness 2005-2007

% Companies Office records accessed 13 April 2016 http://www.coys.co.nz/company/?no=872716-
ESPRESSO+ENGINEERS+LIMITED

" Auckland Star, 8 November 1904, p2

% Otago Daily Times, 29 April 1914, p6

%9 Colonist, 26 November, 1914, p7

0 New Zealand Herald, 30 September 1926, p11
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the Avondale Jockey Club, the Royal New Zealand Yacht Squadron and the Remuera
Bowling Club.

Horace Lovell Massey (1895-1979) was born in Auckland in 1895. Following attending
Auckland Grammar School, he was articled to architect, Alec Wiseman. He also
worked for R K Binney and Hoggard, Prouse and Gummer. After serving in the First
World War, he won a scholarship for three years study at the Architectural Association
in London. Returning to Auckland in 1922, he soon became a partner with the firm
Massey, Morgan, Hyland and Phillips. Before forming a partnership with George Tole
in 1928, he practiced on his own for a couple of years. After the partnership dissolved
in the mid-1930s, Massey practiced on his own, setting up the firm, Horace L. Massey
and Partners. Before retiring in the late 1950s, he was a senior partner in the firm
Massey, Beatson, Rix-Trott and Carter from the late 1940s.

Massey was also involved in landscape design generally for private residences, writing
several papers on the subject. He was prolific in residential design, including the
Geddes House in Remuera (1937), Webb House (1938) in Paritai Drive and McArthur
House in Orakei (1938).

Horace Massey received the NZIA Gold Medal four times, twice with other architects.
Awards won individually were for his design of the Cintra Flats (1935-1936) and the
Wellington Provincial Centennial Memorial in Petone (1940). He served as a chairman
of the Auckland branch of the NZIA and was elected President of the NZIA in 1940. He
published a humber of professional papers and played a large part in the introduction
of the Modern Movement to Auckland.

In partnership, Tole and Massey were awarded the NZIA Gold Medal for their design of
St Michael's Church, Remuera (1932-1933).

4.7 Industrial Grey Lynn

The factory was built in Grey Lynn at a time when the suburb was an established
industrial hub. Grey Lynn was one of Auckland’s early industrial centres. Early
industry in Grey Lynn related to the necessary supply of goods and services to the
developing city. Slaughterhouses, tanneries, timber mills and industrial laundries were
established.** In 1874, the Warnock Brothers were the first manufacturers to move
their soap and candle making business to Richmond Road, Grey Lynn.** Other
manufacturing industries followed including the Tattersfield mattress company, and the
furniture maker, C Renwick, established factories in Grey Lynn, along with a number of
clothing and boot manufacturers. The Tattersfield chimney in the Countdown carpark
is one of the few physical remnants of the earlier factories in Grey Lynn. The need for
larger premises and tougher zoning restrictions led to a number of the established
manufacturing industries in Grey Lynn to relocate to the outer southern and western
suburbs of Auckland. Grey Lynn, like other inner urban areas of Auckland, underwent
a gentrification process and consequent redevelopment in the later decades of the 20™
century resulting in a number of industrial buildings were demolished to make way for
new apartment development as the requirement for inner urban living intensified.

“L The Grey Lynn book : the life & times of New Zealand's most fascinating suburb, p102
“2 High Hopes in Hard Times, A History of Grey Lynn and Westmere, p22
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5.0 Physical Description
5.1 Site and Context

The former shoe factory is situated on the corner site where Crummer Road meets
Mackelvie Street. On the south western corner of the streets, the former factory sits on
the street frontage boundary with a car park behind the building on Mackelvie Street.
Surrounding buildings are generally light industrial, commercial, retail and apartments.
Surrounding buildings vary but are generally much larger while others are of a more
domestic scale. A large mixed development is taking place to the north east of the
former shoe factory which will include businesses, retail and apartments. Close to the
building, to the east is Ponsonby Road. Great North Road runs along the southern end
of Mackelvie Street. To the west of Scanlan Street, Crummer Road tends to become

Figure 6: A closer aerial of the building giving a better indication of the size of the former factory and the
details of the site. (Auckland Council Geo Maps).
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Council Geo Maps).

At the time the factory was built it would have been one of the more substantial
buildings in the area, which was already an industrial section of Grey Lynn.

5.2 Building Description

Designed in a simple Art Deco style, the former shoe factory has retained its original
form and many of its original features. The building is a two storey plus basement,
reinforced concrete frame structure with brick infill. The basement is on the western
side of the building. Internal timber framing has been used for the roof structure, and
the first floor flooring. Twin gables form the roof structure with a hipped edge on the
northern side. The roof is clad in corrugated steel, which has also been used to clad
the gable ends at the rear of the building.

Original steel multi-paned window joinery is still in place on both of the street facades
and the rear of the building facing the car park. The western side of the building now
abuts the building next door and the original elevation with three floors of steel multi-
paned windows is now concealed.

5.3 Condition

As an occupied commercial building, the former shoe factory is in good condition. In
2013 a preliminary assessment undertaken by Auckland Council, found the building to
have a seismic performance of 28%. It therefore does not meet the required 34% of
national building standards and is considered a potential earthquake risk.

5.4 Key features
The key features include but are not necessarily limited to the following:

Original steel window joinery
Faceted corner

Original form

Original openings

Parapet

12



6.0 Comparative Analysis

6.1 The Industrial Workplace

The Murray Shoe Company factory, built at the onset of the Depression, is an example
of a new form of industrial architecture. Best described as a stripped form of Art Deco
design, the factory was very much a part of the new era of utilitarian architecture.
Original drawings indicate that the facade exhibited more ornamentation than is
currently demonstrated. If the drawings reflect the completed building, then fluted
pilasters flanked the windows on the two street facades and other ornamentation was
present above the corner entry door.

Tole and Massey were clearly interested in the latest international developments in
factory design, as were other architects in New Zealand at this time. The parameters
of factory design had expanded, allowing architects to experiment with new ideas and
concepts creating a better working environment while providing a considered and less
utilitarian facade to the street.

6.2 The New Factory Design Aesthetic

At the time the Murray Shoe Company factory was designed, employers and architects
were looking for a modern aesthetic to create an attractive building while at the same
time creating an agreeable atmosphere for employees. In 1937, an article in Building
Today, talks about the design of factory buildings as having architectural merit so that
they are not “devoid of all proportion and decorative treatment.”*® The architectural
discussion was that “buildings should be designed giving a straightforward expression
of their structure in mass” and that “success lies in suitably arranging the main parts,
studying the proportion of solids and voids, emphasising structural lines by relief or
colour — in a word to articulate the structure.”** The modern industrial building was now
expressive of plan, structure and function.

Factories in the 19" century were generally the work of engineers or contractors as
utilitarian structures. However, in the early 20th century, social reformers, labour
organisers and efficiency experts became involved in the welfare and production of
employees and the design of factories took on a new form. Factory design increasingly
became the territory of architects and began a new trend in buildings appearing on the
city landscape. Architectural styles were now part of the industrial aesthetic with
regard to the exterior facade of buildings as well as careful attention given to the
interior working conditions such as the lighting, ventilation and working spaces. New
factory design heralded a shift in the image of the factory workplace from dark and
brutal to a more humane working environment.”® Large window spans, cross
ventilation and large working spaces provided an improved environment.

New industrial buildings designed during the interwar years were part of an intensely
competitive market that manufacturers were experiencing, as industry developed
following World War I. The company’s self-image became an important marketing tool
along with the association with its brand name. The architecturally designed factory,
exposed to public view, projected the company image and was now a viable option to
promote the brand.

¥ Building Today, Volume 1 Number 2, 1937, Architectural Treatment of Factory Buildings, p17-18
*Ibid, p18
# Twentieth Century Architecture, Dennis P. Doordan, Factory Architecture, p88, 92
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6.3 International Influences in the Development of Industrial Design
Germany and Modern Design

In Germany, the Werkbund Movement formed in Munich in 1907. The movement
aimed at bringing designers and manufacturers together as part of social reform of
working conditions in industrial design and in doing so to raise the quality and
productivity levels of locally produced goods. One of the founders was Peter Behrens,
who designed the AEG turbine factory in 1909, one of the most influential examples of
industrial architecture at the time. Free of adornment, the AEG building was designed
as a structural expression of the industrial space. The 15m high steel framed windows
on the side walls of the AEG factory flooded the large open column free space of the
factory interior, endeavouring to provide effective working conditions.*®

b i ‘ - "’\ i

Figure 8: The AEG turbine factory completed in
1909 in Berlin demonstrating the large amount of
glazing in a concrete and steel building.
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/AEG _turbine factory
accessed 28 November 2016 accessed 28
November 2016).

In 1911, Walter Gropius, a protégé of Peter Behrens, along with Adolf Meyer designed
the new fagade of the Fagus Shoe Last Factory. The design was emulated in the
model office factory building Gropius designed for the Werkbund exhibition that took
place in Cologne in 1914.*" Extensive steel framed glazing wrapped around the
corners of the building, emphasising the horizontal, rather than the vertical lines of the
factory. Natural light allowed into the building provided a view into and out of the
workplace and an airy interior. The distinctive design was deliberate to express the
image of the company as a marketing tool. Again, the factory design represented a
new way of looking at factories as an important workplace encouraging a sense of
pride amongst the employees and a more productive output.

Figure 9: Fagus Shoe Last Factory in
Germany, built between 1911 and 1913,
(https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Fagus Factory
accessed 1 November 2016).

Walter Gropius went on to become a founding member of the Bauhaus school of
architecture designing the school building in Dessau in 1925. The Bauhaus Movement
is seen as synonymous with modern design.”® It aimed at severing all links with

* A History of Architecture, Pp691-692
¥ Ibid, p95
* Ibis, p97-99
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architectural precedents. Proponents of the movement generally agreed that there was
a need for a rational response to the requirements of modern living.

Characteristics of the style are a prevailing asymmetry, severe rectilinear or cubic
shapes, smooth flat plane surfaces that were often painted white, the complete
elimination of mouldings and other decoration, flat roofs, and large expanses of steel
framed windows, often arranged in long horizontal bands or as curtain walling.
Internally, the planning was informal and with a minimum of structural walls as modern
buildings were often constructed either with a steel or concrete frame with concrete
floor and roof slabs supported on a series of columns. Partitions could then be erected
anywhere within the footprint of the building.

The development of industrial design in Germany indicated the move towards the
architectural design of factories providing attractive buildings and a better work
environment. The architects discarded the bleak Victorian view of the labour force and
the industrial environment, instead promoting new designs that expressed clean lines,
natural light and open floor plans.

6.4 Other International Influences

In the 1920s and 1930s, English architect, Thomas Wallis designed a number of
striking factory buildings with contemporary facades expressing the latest trends in
design. From the firm, Wallis Gilbert and Partners, Thomas Wallis was one of the
foremost designers of industrial buildings in the interwar period in Britain. He
specialised in factory design and was responsible for a considerable number of the
new interwar industrial buildings. Like Behrens and Gropius, Wallis adhered to the
philosophy that the design of industrial architecture should encourage efficiency and
engage in the successful pursuit of business by the companies that promoted them.*°

The Art Deco fagade of the Hoover Factory, built between 1931-1935, in a prominent
position on London’s Western Avenue, is a celebrated example of Wallis’s factory
architecture.®® Expansive steel framed windows provide light to generous floor plans.
In an article written about the building by London Historians it is noted that ‘history has
judged it more favourably, as did the company and its employees at the time, as well
as the general public.®*

Rl

Figure 10: The Art Deco Facgade of the
Hoover Factory (1931-35) celebrated a new

ﬁ | form of architecture in its palatial design.
L l (http://openbuildings.com/buildings/hoover-

Art Deco was the symbol of a new architectural era, with its clean, streamlined and
modern lines, simply embellished with linear and geometric details. It was also a
reaction against the ornamentation of the Victorian and Edwardian eras.

building-profile-7664 accessed 1 November
2016).

An earlier intact example of the work of Thomas Wallis is the Administration Block of
the General Electric Company in Birmingham, West Midlands which was built between
1920-1922. The building was designed in Wallis’s daylight / masonry phase and is

* Form and Fancy: Factories and Factory Buildings by Wallis, Gilbert and Partners, p3
7 Tbid p91
" Wallis Gilbert and Partners, the Architecture and the Mystery, pl
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more conservative than his later models. In effect the masonry walls provide the
building with a more solid appearance while allowing larger window spans and wider
floor spans afforded by frame construction.

Although more stripped classical in design, and larger in scale, there are similarities in
the use of masonry and window spans as the former shoe factory in Crummer Road.

Figure 11: The Administration Block
™ of GEC in Birmingham.

(https://historicengland.org.uk/services-skills/education/educational-images/administration-block-general-

electric-company-birmingham-410471 accessed 25 November 2016.

These international examples demonstrate the changes in factory architecture and
some of the philosophy behind the design process in the first decades of the 20"
century. Undoubtedly, New Zealand architects and manufacturers were influenced by
this new industrial architecture. This is evident in the industrial building styles that were
emerging in the interwar years.

6.5 Contemporary Industrial Comparisons in New Zealand
Other Shoe Factories

Within New Zealand there were a number of new industrial buildings surfacing in the
mid to late 1920s. The designs that emerged varied with some adopting a stripped
classicism approach but with Art Deco influences. Stripped Classical Design was a
departure from the more Edwardian classical style where classical details became
blander with less ornamentation used, and was often incorporated with Art Deco
design.

Examples of this style include another shoe factory in Auckland designed by Norman
Wade and Edward Bartley in Kingsland. Completed in 1929, the Bridgens Shoe
Company factory, at 326 New North Road, was built by Fletcher Construction. The
classical elements and triangular parapet of this building create a temple like fagade.
The large expansive multi-paned steel framed windows in a regular grid pattern used in
this building are a common element of the new type of factory architecture. Fluted
pilasters, which were included in the original drawings of the Murray Shoe Company
building are another feature that was common at the time.
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Figure 12: The former Bridgens Shoe Company Factory, completed in 1929. (Auckland Council, May
2016).

Figurel3: The western side
wall of the former Bridgen’s
Shoe factory bears some
similarity to the walls of the
Crummer Road factory.
(Auckland Council, November
2016).

In Wellington, the Hannah Shoe Company building was designed by well known
Wellington architects, H T Johns and Son. Constructed in 1922-23, the building is of a
much larger scale than the Crummer Road factory but displays similar characteristics
as an industrial building. Designed in an interwar functionalist style, the construction of
the building is based on concrete exterior walls mixed with brick infill between floor and
window sill, with steel columns and beams supporting timber floors. Internal walls are
timber framed and timber trusses support the roof. Another floor was added soon after
construction as the shoe company expanded. As in the shoe factory in Crummer
Road, light levels are maximised with a regular grid of large multi pane steel framed
windows. This is an earlier construction and is much more functional in appearance
with little decoration.
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Figure 14: The former Hannah Shoe Company
building in Wellington. (Wellington City Council)

6.6 Other surviving factory comparisons in central Auckland

A well-known factory that Horace Massey designed is the Heard’s Building (built
around 1924-1925) at 162-168 Parnell Road, Parnell. Again it is much larger in size,
but still comparable to the Murray Shoe Company factory using the typical similar grid
of large multi paned window openings and similar materials. The Heard’s building
demonstrates Art Deco stripped classical influences. Decorative features such as the
fluted pilasters and other classical elements embellish this building.

Figure 15: The former Heard's factory in Parnell Road as it is now. This building has been adaptively
reused as apartments and offices above retail spaces. (Auckland Council February 2017).

2 Heard’s Confectionary, Auckland Star, 24 August 1925, p10
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Figure 16: The Heard’s Factory in 1937. (Building Today, 1937).

The former Nestle factory at 91-95 St Georges Bay Road, Parnell is another corner site
factory that demonstrates a similar form and use of materials as the shoe factory in
Crummer Road. Designed by Chilwell and Trevithick in 1928, the Nestle factory was
built by Fletcher Construction. Although, once again, larger than the former shoe
factory in Crummer Road, the stripped deco design of this building is more akin to the
simple style of the Crummer Road factory. The former shoe factory emphasises the
horizontal more with the use of wider openings.

Figurel3: The Axis Building (former Nestle Factory) in St Georges Bay Road. (Auckland Council,
February 2017).

6.7 Summary

While the building at 28 Crummer Road was not as revolutionary in its design as some
of the earlier buildings being produced overseas, it displayed many new architectural
concepts that were inspired by such buildings. The use of expansive windows,
providing high levels of natural light, the opening up of interior space using new
technology for larger floor planes, and the general provision of better working
conditions, were all part of a new design ethic. The simplicity of the Art Deco facade is
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well articulated revealing the functional nature of the building. Original drawings
display more embellishment with fluted pillars, a crest, and pronounced lettering
advertising the building as belonging to the Murray Shoe Company. In a prominent
corner position, these design characteristics afforded self-promotion for the shoe
factory while providing a sense of pride for its employees.

7.0 Significance criteria

(a) Historical

Extent to which the place reflects important or representative aspects of national,
regional or local history, or is associated with important events, persons or ideas, or
early period of settlement within New Zealand, the region or locality.

The building has considerable local and regional significance for its association with
the thriving footwear manufacturing industry that once existed in Auckland and in
greater New Zealand which has gradually diminished over time. Today most of the
footwear in New Zealand is imported. Following the removal of import tariffs and tax
breaks for shoe manufacturers, the industry in New Zealand suffered the competition of
cheaper imports, leading to the closure of the remaining shoe manufacturers in New
Zealand, one of the most recent being David EIman who moved out of manufacturing
three years ago.

The building has considerable local significance for its association with the
continuation and development of the industrial nature of Grey Lynn. Once a thriving
industrial hub the area of Grey Lynn has little left to remind us of the industrial evolution
of the suburb. The Murray Shoe Company survived until the early 1980s and it
appears to have occupied the factory building until the early 1970s. At the time of its
demise, the area was beginning a gentrification process as young professionals started
to move into the inner city suburb, restoring dilapidated houses. In the 1990s,
remaining industries relocated to outer Auckland suburbs to allow for new apartment
development. There is now little remaining to indicate the thriving industries, which
once inhabited Grey Lynn.

The Murray Shoe Company is also associated with World War Il as being an essential
industry. From the building in Crummer Road, the company played an important role in
providing boots for the forces during the war.

It is also associated with the former mayor of Grey Lynn, Walter Henry Murray, who
established the company around the late 1890s. Walter Murray also served a term on
the Auckland Harbour Board and was the candidate for the Coalition United Party for
the seat of Grey Lynn in the general elections. Although he no longer ran the company
at the time it moved to the new premises in Grey Lynn, the company still carried the
name of Murray, providing continuity for the brand.

(b) Social

The symbolic, spiritual, commemorative, traditional or other cultural value of,
community association with, or esteem for, the place.

The building has moderate local social significance for its association with the
changes in the awareness of employees working conditions and the consequent
improved activity. The building was designed with care to provide the best working
environment with the provision of large windows providing natural light, creating
separate lunchrooms for men and women, along with a ladies cloakroom. The
lunchroom allowed a social facility for employees during the day, encouraging the
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development of friendships within the workplace. The workers were also involved in
local rugby games against other local manufacturing companies.

(c) Mana whenua

The symbolic, spiritual, commemorative, traditional or other cultural value of,
association with, or esteem for, the place by mana whenua.

An assessment of the place’s significance to mana whenua has not been undertaken
as part of this evaluation.

(d) Knowledge

Potential to provide knowledge through scientific or scholarly study or to contribute to
an understanding of the cultural or natural history of the region or locality.

The building provides some knowledge on how factory buildings from this period
operated. As a former factory building it also provides an understanding into the earlier
industrial nature of Grey Lynn. The building has little local significance with regard to
knowledge.

(e) Technological

The technical accomplishment, design or value of the place.

The building provides some technological knowledge of the form of construction of an
early 20" century factory building. Larger floor spans and the way large steel framed
windows provided both good amounts of natural light and cross ventilation were a
factor in the design of factories at this time. There are few industrial examples that
remain in Auckland from this era. The building has moderate local significance with
regard to technological value.

(f) Physical attributes

Whether the place has value as a notable or representative example of a type, design
or style, method of construction, craftsmanship or use of materials or work of a notable
designer, engineer or builder.

The former factory building has considerable local and regional value as a good
surviving representative and intact example of the few Tole and Massey factory
designs. As a functional industrial design, clearly influenced by the Art Deco
movement, the building is a rare example of a small architecturally designed factory
from this era. There may have been alterations to the exterior given the differences
between the more embellished facade shown on the original drawings and the
simplicity of the exterior walls today. It is not clear that the factory was adorned as is
shown in the drawings, as no early photographs of the building have been discovered.
Should the building have been constructed without the embellishment proposed on the
drawings, this may have been a cost cutting measure, particularly as it was built at the
onset of the depression. If this is the case, then the fagade is considerably intact.
However, while some decoration may have been removed, other aspects of the
exterior walls remain the same. The exterior form of the building is original, along with
elements such as the steel framed windows and the placement of other openings on
the street facades.

The building is also significant as a factory designed by prominent and successful
Auckland architects, George Tole and Horace Massey. Another example of Massey’s
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work that is comparable in style is the former Heard’s factory in Parnell. However, the
Parnell factory has undergone substantial alteration at ground level whereas the former
shoe factory in Crummer Road has retained significant integrity in fabric, design and
form.

(g) Aesthetic
The aesthetic, visual, or landmark values of the place.

Positioned on a prominent corner site, with a well-established name in shoe making,
the former Murray Shoe Company would have been a distinctive landmark. The area
has since changed, with a number of larger commercial premises developing around
the building, making it less conspicuous. An excellent example of an Art Deco
commercial building, the former factory is visually attractive and aesthetically pleasing
as a point of difference in an area of Grey Lynn that is overwhelmed by later
development. The former shoe factory is considered to have moderate local aesthetic
value.

(h) Context

Extent to which the place contributes to or is associated with a wider historical and
cultural context, streetscape, townscape, landscape or setting.

The building has moderate local and regional context value. It was once part of a
group of successful shoe factories in inner urban Auckland. It is one of two known
former shoe factory buildings remaining, the other being the former Bridgens factory in
Kingsland, which was built around the same time. The building also has group value
as being one of two factory buildings designed by Horace Massey and Tole and
Massey,>® within inner urban Auckland, the other being the former Heard’s factory and
offices in Parnell.

The building also has contextual significance for its rarity in the changing face of the
Grey Lynn streetscape. While a number of earlier factories and villas in this part of
Grey Lynn have since disappeared, to make way for new businesses and the recent
Vinegar Lane development, this former factory remains a reminder of the industrial
history of Grey Lynn.

8.0 Statement of significance

The former Murray Shoe Company building has considerable local historic heritage
significance for its historical, contextual and physical attributes values. The building
has significant associations with the shoe manufacturing industry in New Zealand in
addition to its link with Walter H Murray, shoe manufacturer turned local politician and
former Mayor of Grey Lynn. As a factory, the building’s presence is a significant
reminder of the former context and history of what was once an active industrial
suburb.

Designed by prominent Auckland architects, Tole and Massey, the building is a good
and intact example of early 20" century commercial design influenced by the Art Deco
movement. As one of only two former well known shoe company factories, that remain
in the inner urban area of Auckland, the building has significant contextual value as
being part of this small group and also for being one of a few intact 1920s light
industrial buildings that still grace the inner Auckland suburbs.

%3 |t is not clear whether it was Tole or Massey who designed the Murray Shoe Company Building. Horace
Massey was responsible for the Heard’s building in Parnell.
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9.0 Extent of the place for scheduling

The identified extent of place for scheduling is the area that is integral to the function,
meaning and relationships of the place. In this case it includes the land described as
Lot 18 Sec 4 DP 242 (CT NA138-267). The building is on its original site with its
original curtilage, providing value to its immediate setting. It is important to protect this.
The use of the entire site, plus the extension to the kerb for the area that is covered by
the building, as the extent of place, is considered necessary to protect the heritage
values of the building. These include the concept of natural light as a feature of the
architectural design of the factory. The proposed extent of place also protects the
building from being too overwhelmed and dominated by any potential future
development.

Figure 34: The proposed extent of place is
shown in the section outlined in red on the
aerial. (Auckland Council GIS viewer).

10.0 Recommendations

Based on the above evaluation, the former Murray Shoe Company Building at 28
Crummer Road, Grey Lynn, meets the threshold for scheduling as a Category B
Historic Heritage Place, having considerable historical, physical attributes, and context
values.

11.0 Table of Historic Heritage Values

Significance Criteria (A- | Value* (None, Little, | Context (Local, Regional,

H) Moderate, Considerable, | National, International)
Exceptional)

A- Historical Considerable Local and regional

B- Social Moderate Local

C- Mana Whenua Not assessed

D- Knowledge Little Local

E- Technological Moderate Local

F- Physical Attributes Considerable Local and regional

G- Aesthetic Moderate Local

H- Context Moderate Local and regional
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12.0 Overall Significance

The following line items are proposed for inclusion in the Schedule 14.1 Schedule of
Significant Historic Heritage Places:

Place Name and/or

W H Murray Shoe Factory (former)

Description
Address 28 Crummer Road, Grey Lynn
Category B

Primary Feature

The factory building

Known Heritage
Values

AF

Extent of Place

Refer to the above aerial in section 9.0

Exclusions

Interior of building

Additional Controls
for Archaeological
Sites or Features

Place of Maori Interest
or Significance

Author (and position)

Megan Walker

Historic Heritage Specialist

Date
February 2017
Reviewer

Cara Francesco

Principal Specialist Built Heritage

Date

February 2017
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APPENDIX 1:

Historical Background of the Footwear Industry

The footwear industry in New Zealand has a long established trade. Initially individual
boot makers set up small businesses upon arrival in New Zealand, to meet the needs
of new immigrants. Advertisements as early as the 1840s demonstrate the early
shoemakers in New Zealand.

CARPET SLIPPERS.

N SALE, n few pairs of Ladies’ and Gent's.
Carpet Slippers,  Also, Ladies’ fashionable
‘Boots and Shoes suitable for the summer season,

HOWE & SWINBOURNE,
Boot and Shoemakers,
Dixon-street,
Wellington, September 14, 1840, Wellington Independent, 15
September 1849, p2.

In the 1860s, the New Zealand government placed a duty of one shilling a pair on
imported footwear, in an effort to encourage local industry. The first factories began to
appear in the 1870s. Despite the imposition of the duty, it took a while for the shoe
industry to bloom. In 1880, 500,000 boots were imported, compared with 280,000
made locally. The superior quality of the imports made them more popular. However,
by 1895, New Zealand boasted 65 footwear factories, producing more than a million
pairs annually. By 1910, 74 footwear factories existed in New Zealand.**

Irish emigrant, Robert Hannah, was one of the first to open a shoemaking factory in
Wellington, after initially opening a shop in 1874, in Lambton Quay. In 1870, he had
originally founded the firm R. Hannah and Company in Charleston (between
Greymouth and Westport). He moved to Wellington with the intention of expanding his
business. In 1894, he built a five storey brick factory designed by local Wellington
architect, Thomas Turnbull, which has since been demolished. In the 1920s, a new
factory was constructed. Hannah’s was to become a household name nationwide
manufacturing shoes as well as providing outlets all over New Zealand.

i \B

(5

-
5
‘N

i1 ‘_

—

Hannah’s factory floor in the 19"
century (Zac Collection, Alexander
Turnbull Library).

" http:/ /www.teara.govt.nz/en/ clothing-and-footwear-manufacturing /page-4 accessed 18 April 2016
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A 1956 photograph taken by an
unknown Evening Post photographer, of
the 1894 Hannah’s Building in
Wellington. (Ref: EP/1956/0834-F.
Alexander Turnbull Library, Wellington).

In Auckland, there were a number of early footwear factories. John Trenwith opened
the Pioneer Boot Factory at 37 to 39 Wakefield Street after establishing his wholesale
boot making industry in 1870.>°> Formerly an Auckland hotel, this became the first boot
factory in the North Island. The company continued to operate as a family company
long after John Trenwith died in 1902, under the name of Trenwith Bros Ltd, until 2008.
The Wakefield Street boot factory building was demolished in the early 1980s.%®

The Trenwith Pioneer Boot Factory in the late
19" century (NZETC John Trenwith).

The Trenwith Brothers footwear factory in the
1970s. More window openings have been
added to the side walls to let more light into
the building. (Sir George Grey Special
Collections, Auckland Libraries, 314-10-31).

rcl-t1-body1-d1-d49.html accessed 18 April 2016
7 Auckland scrapbook, September 1982 - February 1983 page 185
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Other early shoe manufacturers in Auckland included Henry Brennan and Clarkson and
Company who had established shoe companies in Queen Street around the mid -
1870s.”’

As the population grew, more bootmakers opened up factories in the Auckland central
area in the late 1870s and 1880s. Amongst them was Henry Davy who established the
Crown Boot Factory in Grey Street, *® and the Northern Boot and Shoe Factory
operated by Thomas Hodgson.*

The Northern Boot and Shoe Manufacturing Company Ltd, in Hobson Street Auckland, in 1901.
(Sir George Grey Special Collections, Auckland Libraries, 7- A9339

In 1913, notable Auckland architect, W A Holman designed a new factory and offices
for the Northern Boot and Shoe Company to be built in Federal Street.

The Bridgens family ran another successful shoe manufacturing company for over 100
years. It began when Edward Bridgens started boot making in Pitt Street in 1875. He
moved premises in 1893 to Karangahape Road, where he opened a retail outlet on the
ground floor. In the basement, he made shoes with a staff of three and used the top
floor for his home. In 1923, he moved the business to a house in Prospect Terrace,
before relocating to a new factory premises in New North Road, Kingsland in 1929.
The family business remained there until 1997, when the shoe factory, struggling to
compete with imported footwear, following the removal of import protection, finally
closed.

The industry continued to grow and shoe manufacturing in New Zealand survived the
First World War and the Depression. In 1938, the New Zealand Government restricted

57 Industrial Heritage, p142
 NZETC Leather Trade
* Industrial Heritage, p142
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footwear imports into the country and increased tariffs to protect the local footwear
industry.®°

" It is the Duty of Every True New Zea]ander to

Wear N.Z. Made Footwear :

These Brands Will ldentlfy " Auckland Made ”'-—

Trenwlth Brothers, Wakeﬁeld Street seeses PANAMA," “PIONEBR" b4
clark, Purdy and Co., Nelson St ceaaus ersaesanserennal * IMPERIAL."
Dearsleys, Limited, Nugent Bt ...ceesvscssnsonsscscsss “‘E‘I-EXI:LB"=

J. W Moore and Sun, Ltd,, Kingsland ..... eaessssssss *EXEMPLAR" .. |
Northampton Factory, Eden Ter. PYRAMID’ (Men); *ASCOT' (Women)
Auckland Sandal Co., Ltd, England 8t ...eseaiens ... “SUPERIOR" '

E. G, Bridgens and Co., Prospect Ter. .vevesesvan . "WESTMSTEE,"
“PROMENADE” (Womau}, ““TRIUMPH,” “PENNANT.”

W. Monks, 10 Ruskin St. Parnell . coe “EKAHA? “SELBUTRA“'
Swinton and Oates, 29 West L1 PP ‘WALKAWA.Y."- “ST, LOUIS" |
R. Walton, Wakefield Street ..... sssassssssasasnernren oo LION™ NZ Herald’ 24 DECember 1930'
Taolly and Rattray, Upper Queen St cecevsnnnsas ceedieiiV - pil

Following the Second World War, the footwear industry continued to thrive for the next
40 years, with over 40 shoe manufacturers in the country, supplying around 95% of the
market. New footwear manufacturers such as David Elman and Andrea Biani emerged
becoming well known retailers and local manufacturers of fashionable women’s shoes.

However, in the mid 1980s, the removal of import restrictions on footwear made it
difficult for New Zealand footwear factories to compete with cheaper imports. Domestic
production reduced from 7.7 million in 1986-87 to 1.5 million pairs in 1997-98.** Many
local manufacturing firms closed their doors in the 1990s. Some companies closed
their factory floor in New Zealand but opened up factories in Asia.

By 2008, more than 95% of the footwear sold in New Zealand was imported.®? Tariffs
lowered to 10% by 2009. David Elman, who had manufactured shoes since 1941, was
one of the latest factories to close down just over three years ago.®® They continue to
operate as a retail business selling European imports.

Existing factories in New Zealand now consist of specialist footwear manufacturers,
apart from niche boutique shoemakers such as Minnie Cooper who remain supplying
fashion shoes for women. Other New Zealand owned companies have elected to have
their designs made overseas.

% Thid

ww2.stats.govt.nz/domino/external /web/nzstories.nsf/Response/Major+Manufacturing + Industry+Grou
ps accessed 18 April 2016.

2 Ibid

o http://www.davidelman.co.nz/About accessed 19 April 2106
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APPENDIX 2:

Historic Drawings

Auckland Council Property Files
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29



i i e
)5 |

| ToLE MAZEY

quzuA ABIBA - AMTPI"
- ARCHITECT/ ™

t AvckLalcs .

23
W

-

ROPO/ED' « NEW » PREMIV/E./
« THE -, MUD:;AY . SHOE « CO -« Ut
POP o T J + NEVIN
/é /CAL.C. DDAlNAGE

| e~

4]

Az

S
&
. ~
W .
N 1|
X T
= g
. Il
|
B se T
2 A s s

[ RS

‘ <7_'H s rl of FICE “ "
1o i o

‘-\/Z‘)—’—w——..-; — ,I{l - ' i

52%0

ot Aoty /5

rept by ACe

CGROUND F@B PLAN

WTRUMMER

N
5

Original drainage plan 1930 (Auckland Council Property Files).

30



l
i
L
L0
|
'1

L BB gt‘m wirva)
Hect e i

1944 drawings for alterations (Auckland Council Property Files).

IHt
W Exssmma. :i

; Moo, reen’
e NI 0
3 3 ] L} fsedersi.

“rv s
T_—Al
ﬁ/.( u
l l oy ot

LG
5 ey
PN
fiuin eirrt Fiap. .
v - A JZ %
—
CLEAT 4
" | Cremd l
[ Y Erisrin
miw| B

R
; e Swamnes ve
! R ] 'u-uu

'/f' '/I"'- //u A,

Ask Auus{
Rowi vE,

L T

7L

Enron

ﬂ o
% F.; DETIS
af NEW ”ckclw
Wb ey ore 9% s )
Wirn %" BEcos ino Facwal] E

WELL

L f/mrv.'.- 240" (AN
AW VRIS AL TR
AT TG 1R

B NATEN

o e LT

I

I;w.,

Aemace ex ecza

3. i o3 B
oot ol B, e e
P it 2. o
A= ' :'f."ff,"s‘..:"

OFFICE
AR AT

L2{T Thoces i
ACdr. BrE v
Fir 2asrons 1Y
SuPPILED EY IES
BWHEL i
THREE TO EACK. |

Score X7 A vt

MR

31



NOLLOES .wzdzm..m 1d NMOL

G v ENGL
; S g oY
o T o

&
s...h.‘...,..‘..ﬁ...u f
T '
oS- rv S/ %\k\ ,
e
.,r,.

58
ot

otD
ord

S S LA S R e

.ﬁ‘

Bl u}ﬁ
o R
ST EIIYITTR
o T L]
——

f::i..
SNy
v ST

g o RN
i i e

an ||
s |

1950 Drawings for alterations (Auckland Council Property Files).

32



1961 alterations (Auckland Council Property Files).
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APPENDIX 3:

Additional Research

Historic Image
Cadastral maps
Newspaper Articles
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Image taken of Crummer Road taken from near Ponsonby Road in 1965. The arrow points to
the Murray shoe factory which was still operating out of the building. (Auckland Council Property
Files)

Closer image of building from same 1965 photograph. (Auckland Council Property Files)
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{;VANTED, Improve

r for the Finiéﬁ]ng.

highest wages given—Apply W. H,

Murray and Co.

Evidence of the firm operating in the 1890s - Auckland Star, 14 October 1898,p8

BOOT OPERATIVE'S VALUE.

APPEAL FOR EXEMPTION.
CONFLICTING EVIDENCE.

Ax adjourned appeal for the exemption of
a hoot operative was heard by the First
Auckland Military Service Board yester-
day, when the Murray DBoot Company
(Mr. Hall Bkelton), appealed for Thomas
Brown, a heeler in thoir employ. |

James Wilson, a skilled operative, who'
had been in the trade ‘29 years, seid it
was easy to learn to manipulate . the
machine used by Brown, and an ordinary|
man could control it after tws months'!
tuition. Regarding the employment of re-
turned soldiers, witness said thers were
many men willing to learn the trade who
should bo given & chance. The operators
of the machines need not be skilled me.
chanics, as an engineer was always calied
in to effect ropaurs. i

John W. Lamb, & returned soldier, em-'
ployed- by A. Moore, Ltd., ssid that he
nad been s year in the trade, He had
been working a heeler for two weeks, and
had proved satisfactory. !

Roger Ii. Ienton, chawman of the Re-
turned Soldiers' Employment Committee,
suid that many returned men were out of
work., A man had applied for a position
in th? boot trade yesterday. i

Evidence of Union Secretary.

Charles A. Watts, secretary of the Auck-'
land Boot Employces' Union, said that to
his knowledge thers was a capable man
vut of work at present. There had been
trouble at Murray's factory, he eaid, and
o lock-out had resulted, terminating in
the dismissal of a heeler,  The Murray
Boot Company were large manufacturers
of ladies’ fancy heels, \

To Major Conlan : Men are coming back
from thes war, and work must be found
for them. Brown is almost an unskilled
operator. !

To Mr. Skelton: It is not as difficult
to obtain men as you would like the board
to believe, j

George Chitty, foreman of Murray's
faclory, said the class of work Lamb was
doing was simple. 1t might be possible
to obtain a man, but in his opinion 1]
months would be rec{uired for training.-
With regard to the alleged lock-out, wit-
ness said the man had como back of his
own accord, and later had left the employ
of the company. Brown was the only
trained heeler left, and even ab present
was working 13 and 14 hours a day to
finish orders, .

Major Conlan: Brown enlisted in tho !
twenty-ninth reinforcement. His  wife”
got him out of camp, as he was & Second
Division man, If he had gone to the
front, what would you have done?
Witness: Wo have to keep trained
men, :

William J. Hamill, manager of the
Murray Boot Factory, corroborated the
foreman's statements. He had employed
four returned men, but had none with
him at present, He had nob found re-
turned soldiers satisfactory. It ivould
take from one to two years to train a man
to fili Brown s position,

Mr. Pine: And anyway, couldnt you
cut down the manufacture of Louis and
high heels for ladies?

“Tralped Men Badly Needad."‘

* W. L. Rowland, managing director of
tha Now Zealand Root Factory, said
trained men +were badly needed. Person-
ally, he would not employ an inexperienced
man.  Alveady a heel operator had re-
ceived six months' exemption,

Major Conlan: There was o big row
over that. The other employers thought
hé had received too much time!

Witness: This is startling evidence
that I have heard this afternoon. Fancy
training men in two or three weeks!
Someone is telling lies! We have to have
trained men!

Mr. Anderson: Of course, but when
you take an untrained man you do not
make him managing. director at once, do
you! Why could not you promote some-
one else, from another position to the
machine, and put thy inexperienced man
on the easier job?

The board decided that the essential
questions were whether the factory could
get a man to fill Brown's position, and
how long it would take to train another
man.  The questions had mnob heen
answered.

The case was adjowrned until November
8 for inguiry. ; .

New Zealand Herald, 25 September 1918, p8
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QUALITY AND WORRKMANSHP. ‘

HIGH STAXDARD SET. !

|

*Quality and Workmanship”—this i<

gnod slogan when 1t is carried out

tterallv as is the case with the Murray
hoe, which is not known merely 1n
tuckland Lut throughout the whole

dominion., The Murray Shee Co. always
ndeavours to make the Dbest shoes at
easonable prices and that a very high
evel has been reached is evidenced LY
he demand. To make the best means a
ueh class organisation, and this the
omipany has achieved. The operatives
ae highly shilled, the machinery 1= Kept
ip-to date m every detail in order to
neet new styles and fash.oms, whtle the
naterials used are of the very best

Fhe Murrav shoe 13 a good wearer. It
= bwilt that wayv and a good deal of
rand work 1= used in the manufacture.
(e publi are fastidious and those who
eally <tudy shoe ralnes kaow it 13 m-
ws=ible for a manufacturer to make
rond qualty shoes  out  of  cheap
naterials.  Nobody knows this betier
itan the Murrav Shoe Lo, so that
wledition to employing skilled workmen,
hey purcha-e only high grade materials,
wence the reputation for quality they
iave eamipned The company are justly
roud of ther repatation for qualry
thoe=  That thev have =et a standanrl
‘or New Zealand 13 4an  achievement
vhich thev are jzalous of and consze-
jently they are ever at the greatest
dms to ce¢ that every Murray Sioe
ent out of the faectory is true to stand-
tnd—" qualbity and workmanship™ Mur-
‘av =hoes are obtamable at all leading
Jhoe stores.

Auckland Star, 6 April 1925. p11
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MURRAY SHOE CO.

* MAKES LIFE'S WALK EASY.”

The slogan adopted for ths Murray
shos, * nﬁuzs life’s walk eaey,” is an
srreating one, expressing in cno brief sen-
tence more than a whaole page of empty
could convey. Only those closely
sasocizted with tha boot and shoe trade,
however, could apprecinio the ceaseless
thought and care and diligence that has
ne to the building up of the Murray
ootwear trade. It is based on excellence,
on faithfulness of construclion and quality
of material. At ono time thero was a
certain prejudice in some quarters agsinst
Jocally-made goeds of any description; the
Murray shos has done more 1o break
down that foolish prejudico than New
Zealanders generally are aware.

As a result the demand for the Murray
shoe has increased to a phenomenal extent,
and the business 13 ons  of the
most progressive and flourishing of its
kind in Néew Zealand to-day. It is the
sin and ideal of the company to place
upon the market a shoo that will give
fullest measure of satisfaction to retailer
and customer alike, and this ideal has
been attained in: full measure. One could
travel round the world and find no shoes
which would, in poini of quality or excel-
lence in value, excel the Murray shoe.
They strike a noto of distinction that
‘l':vu{d win popular favour in sny world
cmtre, In Rroof of this it may ba men-
tioned that Murray shoes displayed re.
cently at an American footwear exhibition
grined very favourable comment, showing
thad the locally-made article is well able
to hold its own in competition with the
bést of overssas manufactures.

Specialising as it does in ladies’ high-
clasy footwear, the Murray Shoe Company
is able to offer New Zealand women the
very latest styles and designs from the

tld's fashion centres. ree  points

ominate every stage of manufacture—

style, quality, excellence of workmanship.
As soon as a new styls is launched, it
finds expression in the Marray shoe; the
designer, inde-dd, often anticipates the
world's latest. The Murray shoo is out
10 equal the best footwear that can be
mantdisctured anywhere, and the aim of
the company is to put it before the public
at a reasonable cost. Thus the very
finest products of overseas manufaclure
can be equalled, il not heaten, by the
locally-made article, and placed on the
market at a price which gives it a con.
siderable advantage over imported foot-
waar.

At the sample rooms of the Murray Shoe
Company, in Cook Street, may Lo seen
the latest and smartast of summer foot.
wear in suede, patent and fancy wear.
The pandal effect is proving extremely
popular, while equally high in favour are
the shoes of fancy design in patent leather
with straps. The prosent vogue is all for
strap shoes, and these are showing in
wide variety. For neatness, smariness
and durability the Murray shoe has long
since proved its worth, and thote who
reake & point of asking always for it ary
assured of personsl comfort and satisfao-
tion, both as regards appesrsnce sad in
respecth of prica

New Zealand Herald, 18 December 1924, p15
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GREY LYNN
AIR. W. H. MURRAY SELECTED

Mr. W. H. Murray has been seclected
as the United party’s candidate for
the Grey Lyun seat. |

At a meeting of the branch which
was held in the Grey Lynn Library
Hall on Mouday evening, there was an
attendance of over 30 rvepresentatives
from various parts of the clectorate,
and the proceedings were marked by
considerable enthusia~m. The chairman
of the provincial executive, Mr. F. I
Burbush, the president of the Auckland
Women’s League, Mrs. Von  Sturmer,
and a representative of  the  junior
United organisation were present. The
decision of the branch will be forwarded
throngh the usual channels to the Domi-
nion executive of the United party.

Mr, Murray is a native of Auckland,
and was educated at the City Hast
Sehool. He has taken a prominent part
in the business, publie, and sporting
life of the community. Tor 20 years
he was managing director of the Morray
Shoe Company, and was president of the
Boot  Manufacturers’ Association on
three oceasions, Mr. Murray was Mayor
of Grey Lynn, served a term on the
Auckland Harbour Beard, and is a mem-
ber of the Auckland City Council. He
was president of the Grey Lynn Bowling
Club and s a justice of the peace.
Sinee retiving from active participation
im business, Mr. Murray has travelled
extensively and has visited various parts
of Australia and  America. He has
studied the national and local politics
of these States and conntries.

Auckland Star, 29 July 1931, p3
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THREE PREMISES ENTERED.

Three burglaries in city and suburhan
premises were discovered on Saturday
morning, -

The tobacconist's shop of Mr, J. Thomp-
son, at 49, Customs Street IFast, was
enteredd by a thiel, who broke a glass
panel in the front door and stole a large
guantity of cigarettes and tobacco, in ad-
dition to three razors which had been
left to he ground. The tolal loss was
estimated ab £40.

A small sum of money was secured by
a thiel who entered the Olympic Sports
Room, on the first floor of the St. Jumes’
Building, Queen Street, and secarched the
premises. The intruder apparently cn-
tered ‘by means of a key, which was
stolen from the proprietor's oflice on I'ri-
day. On Saturday morning the chieck
on the Yale lock was found to have been
turned down, preventing entry by means
of the key. 'The thief left the rooms
through a window at the back.

The factory. of the Murray Shoe Com-
pany, at the corner of Crummer Road
and Mackelvie Street, Grey Lyun, was en-
tered by a burglar, who broke a pane in
a side window, The man stole only four
pairs of boots.

New Zealand Herald, 26 October 1931, p10
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PAIRS OF SHOES STOLEN

The theft of shoes valued at ahout
L12 from the factory of the Murray
Shoe Company, at the corner of Mackel-
vie Street and Crummer Road, Grey
Lynn, was discovered yesterday moru-
ing.

A pane of glass had heen removed
from a window at the hack of the build-
ing. The premises apparently had been
searched thoroughly, as both the fae-
torv and the offiee were ]'nns:-r»km].
There were several empty shoe boxes
on the lloor, the contents ]msmtr Leen
stolen,

The factory was entered about two
vears ago, when footwear was stolen.

New Zealand Herald, 19 May 1933, p10

TWO OFFICES ENTERED

Two business premises in Auckland
were entered by burglars during Sun-
day night and in one case a safe was
blown open with gelignite and a con-
siderable sum of money was stolen.
Safeblowers entered the grocery shop
of R. W. Gallaugher, Limited, Victoria
Street West, and opened the safe by
blowing off the Jining of the door, which
contained the locking mechanism.
About £100 in cash was taken, but
cheques, postal notes and other docu-
ments were left scattered on the floor.
In the past four unsuccessful attempts
have been made by burglars to open
the same safe.

Two safes were opened with keys in
the office of the Murray Shoe Company.
Limited, 28 Crummer Road, Grey Lynn.
By forcing a drawer in the ofhice the
intruders ohtained the keys to the
safes, but the firm, having previousl
been visited by burglars, does not leave
money on the premises. A small cash-
box, containing documents and papers
of no value to the thieves, was the only
thing taken.

New Zealand Herald, 23 December 1941,
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AUCKLAND FIRMS
GAZETTE LISTINGS
ESSENTIAL  INDUSTRIES

Firms in Auckland city and pro-
vince, whose activities come under
the heading of essential industries
under the National Service Emer-
gency Regulations, are listed in the
current Gazette as follows:—

Footwear Manutaciuring.—H. Akast,
Bridgens and Company, Burnett, Jones,
Limited, S. Button and Son, Limited, G.
A. Coles and Company, Limited, J.
Crocker and Company, Limited, Daisleys,
Limited, Dearslys, Limited, Farmers’
Trading Company, Limited, H. L. Frith,
Limited, Hardwear Boot Factory, Limited,
C. A. Mason and Son, W. Monks, Limited,
J: W. Moore and Son, Limited, Northamp-
ton Boot Factory, Limited, Swinton and
Oates, Limited, Trenwith Brothers, Vita
Shoe Company, Limited, Ward Brothers
Footwear, Limited, Murray Shoe Com-
pany, Barker, Smith and Lynch, Limited,
Modern Shoes, Lamited, Auckland; One-
hunga Boot Factory, Limited, Onehunga.

Cliviacaataz

Auckland Star, 26 January 1942, p3
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APPENDIX 4:

Certificates of Title

NA82/214
NA138/267

5 January 1897
10 January 1907
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COMPUTER FREEHOLD REGISTER
UNDER LAND TRANSFER ACT 1952

Historical Search Copy

R.W. Muir
Registrar-General
of Land

Identifier NA138/267
Land Registration District North Auckland
Date Issued 10 January 1907

Prior References

NAS82/214
Estate Fee Simple
Area 556 square metres more or less

Legal Description Lot 18 Section 4 Deposited Plan 242

Original Proprietors
Thomas Ock-Ling Ho and Joyce Tsai-Yee Ho

Interests
B339345.1 Mortgage to Bank of New Zealand - 15.10.1984 at 11.52 am
B372495.1 CAVEAT BY CROTHALL PROPERTY SERVICES LIMITED - 22.1.1985 AT 2.30 PM

7048548.1 Lapse of Caveat B372495.1 pursuant to Section 145A Land Transfer Act 1952 - produced 28.9.2006 at
9:00 am and entered 19.10.2006 at 9.01 am

7038310.1 Discharge of Mortgage B339345.1 - 9.10.2006 at 10:39 am

7164373.1 Transfer to Joyce Tsai-Yee Ho (21/40 share) and Clive Francis Kay-Fai Ho (19/40 share) - 15.12.2006 at
9:00 am

Transaction Id Historical Search Copy Dated 25/02/16 12:35 pm, Page I of 3

Client Reference  rbester001
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APPENDIX 5:

Photographs

Photographs of 28 Crummer Road, Grey Lynn taken by Auckland Council on 24 February 2016

MacKelvie Street fagade taken from south eastern side of road.
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Original steel windows of building and decorative panelling effect of facade framing the window bays.

Faceted corner of building facing the corner of Mackelvie Street and Crummer Road.
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Crummer Road facade showing panelled window bays, an original entry door and how the south western side of
the building is concealed by later development.
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The rear of the building, shows many original features,
including the twin gabled roof form and the steel framed
windows. The staircase was added later.
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The building as seen from Mackelvie Street.
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